

Section 1. Section 3, chapter 25, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 43-.88A.030 are each amended to read as follows:

When a fiscal note is prepared and approved as to form, accuracy, and completeness by the office of (~~(program planning and fiscal))~~ financial management, which depicts the expected fiscal impact of a bill or resolution, copies shall be filed immediately with:

- (1) The chairperson of the committee to which the bill or resolution was referred upon introduction in the house of origin;
- (2) The senate committee on ways and means, or its successor;
- (3) The house committees on revenue and appropriations, or their successors; and
- (4) The legislative budget committee.

Whenever possible, such fiscal note shall be provided prior to or at the time the bill or resolution is first heard by the committee of reference in the house of origin.

When a fiscal note has been prepared for a bill or resolution, a copy of the fiscal note shall be placed in the bill books or otherwise attached to the bill or resolution and shall remain with the bill or resolution throughout the legislative process insofar as possible.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. There is added to chapter 43.132 RCW a new section to read as follows:

When the fiscal note indicates that a bill or resolution would require expenditures of funds by a county, city, town, or other unit of local government, the legislature shall determine the state's fiscal responsibility and shall make every effort to appropriate the funds or provide the revenue generating authority necessary to implement the legislation during the ensuing biennium.

Passed the House April 19, 1979.

Passed the Senate April 11, 1979.

Approved by the Governor May 2, 1979.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 2, 1979.

---

## CHAPTER 113

[House Bill No. 164]

### MOTOR VEHICLES—REGISTRATION—LENGTH—SPECIAL MOVEMENT PERMIT FEES—MOTOR REMOVAL

AN ACT Relating to motor vehicles; amending section 46.12.080, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 and RCW 46.12.080; amending section 46.12.170, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 13, chapter 25, Laws of 1975 and RCW 46.12.170; amending section 46.16.260, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 11, chapter 170, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 46.16.260; amending section 46.44.030, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 1, chapter 64, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 46.44-.030; amending section 2, chapter 137, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 16, chapter 64, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 46.44.0941; and repealing section 46.12.090, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 and RCW 46.12.090.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 46.12.080, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 and RCW 46.12.080 are each amended to read as follows:

Any person holding the certificate of license registration for a motorcycle or any vehicle registered by its motor number in which there has been installed a new or different motor than that with which it was issued certificates of ownership and license registration shall forthwith and within five days after such installation forward and surrender such certificates to the ~~((director))~~ department, together with an application for issue of corrected certificates of ownership and license registration and a fee of one dollar, and a statement of the disposition ~~((which was made))~~ of the former motor. The possession by any person of any such certificates for ~~((a))~~ such vehicle in which a new or different motor has been installed, after five days following such installation, shall be prima facie evidence of a violation of the provisions of this chapter and shall constitute a misdemeanor.

Sec. 2. Section 46.12.170, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 13, chapter 25, Laws of 1975 and RCW 46.12.170 are each amended to read as follows:

If, after a certificate of ownership is issued, a security ~~((agreement))~~ interest is ~~((placed))~~ granted on the vehicle described therein, the registered owner or secured party shall, within ten days thereafter, present an application to the department, ~~((signed by the registered owner and the secured party;))~~ to which shall be attached ~~((the certificate of license registration and))~~ the certificate of ownership last issued covering the vehicle, or such other documentation as may be required by the department, which application shall be upon a form provided by the department and shall be accompanied by a fee of one dollar. The department, if satisfied that there should be a reissue of the certificate~~((s))~~, shall note such change upon the vehicle records and issue ~~((to the registered owner a new certificate of license registration and))~~ to the secured party a new certificate of ownership.

Whenever there is no outstanding secured obligation and no commitment to make advances and incur obligations or otherwise give value, the secured party must assign the certificate of ownership to the debtor or the debtor's assignee and transmit the certificate to the department with an accompanying fee of one dollar. The department shall then issue a new certificate of ownership and transmit it to the owner. If the affected secured party fails to either assign or transmit the certificate of ownership to the ~~((debtor))~~ department within ten days after proper demand, that secured party shall be liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars, and in addition for any loss caused to the debtor by such failure.

Sec. 3. Section 46.16.260, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 11, chapter 170, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 46.16.260 are each amended to read as follows:

A certificate of license registration to be valid must have endorsed thereon the signature of the registered owner (if a firm or corporation, the signature of one of its officers or other duly authorized agent) and must be carried in the vehicle for which it is issued, at all times in the manner prescribed by the director. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or have in his possession a vehicle without carrying thereon such certificate of license registration and/or maximum gross weight license as herein provided. Any person in charge of such vehicle shall, upon demand of any of the local authorities or of any police officer or of any representative of the department, permit an inspection of such certificate of license registration and/or maximum gross weight license. This section does not apply to a vehicle for which annual renewal of its license number plates is not required and which is marked in accordance with the provisions of RCW 46.08.065.

Sec. 4. Section 46.44.030, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 as last amended by section 1, chapter 64, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 46.44.030 are each amended to read as follows:

It is unlawful for any person to operate upon the public highways of this state any vehicle other than a municipal transit vehicle having an overall length, with or without load, in excess of ~~((thirty-five))~~ forty feet: PROVIDED, That an auto stage or school bus shall not exceed an overall length, inclusive of front and rear bumpers, of forty feet: PROVIDED FURTHER, That any such school bus constructed prior to April 1, 1977, shall be equipped with three axles: PROVIDED FURTHER, That any school bus constructed on or after April 1, 1977, and in excess of thirty-six feet six inches shall be equipped with three axles: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the route of any auto stage in excess of thirty-five feet or school bus in excess of thirty-six feet six inches upon or across the public highways shall be limited as determined by the ~~((state highway commission))~~ department of transportation for state highways, or by the local legislative authority for other public roads.

It is unlawful for any person to operate on the highways of this state any combination of vehicles which contains a vehicle of which the permanent structure is in excess of forty-five feet.

It is unlawful for any person to operate upon the public highways of this state any combination consisting of a nonstinger steered tractor and semitrailer which has an overall length in excess of sixty-five feet.

It is unlawful for any person to operate on the highways of this state any combination consisting of a truck and trailer, or any lawful combination of three vehicles, with an overall length, with or without load, in excess of sixty-five feet, or a combination consisting of a tractor and a stinger steered semitrailer which has an overall length in excess of sixty-five feet without load or in excess of seventy feet with load.

"Stinger steered" as used in this section shall mean a tractor and semi-trailer combination which has the coupling connecting the semitrailer to the tractor located to the rear of the center line of the rear axle of the tractor.

These length limitations shall not apply to vehicles transporting poles, pipe, machinery or other objects of a structural nature which cannot be dismembered and operated by a public utility when required for emergency repair of public service facilities or properties but in respect to night transportation every such vehicle and load thereon shall be equipped with a sufficient number of clearance lamps on both sides and marker lamps upon the extreme ends of any projecting load to clearly mark the dimensions of such load.

Sec. 5. Section 2, chapter 137, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 16, chapter 64, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 46.44.0941 are each amended to read as follows:

The following fees, in addition to the regular license and tonnage fees, shall be paid for all movements under special permit made upon state highways. All funds collected shall be forwarded to the state treasury and shall be deposited in the motor vehicle fund:

All overlegal loads, except overweight, single trip .....	\$ 5.00
Continuous operation of overlegal loads having either overwidth or overheight features only for a period not to exceed thirty days .....	\$ 20.00
Continuous operations of overlegal loads having overlength only for a period not to exceed thirty days .....	\$ 10.00
Continuous operation of a combination of vehicles not to exceed seventy-five feet overall length which may contain a permanent structure vehicle not in excess of forty-seven feet for a period of one year .....	\$ 60.00
Continuous operation of a three-axle fixed load vehicle having less than 65,000 pounds gross weight for a period not to exceed thirty days .....	\$ 50.00
Continuous operation of overlegal loads having nonreducible features not to exceed eighty-five feet in length and fourteen feet in width for a period of one year .....	\$150.00

Continuous operation of vehicles having width not to exceed eight feet six inches, subject to such rules governing their operation as may be adopted by the department of transportation, for a period of one year . . . . . \$150.00

Continuous operation of farm implements under a permit issued as authorized by RCW 46.44.140 by:

- (1) Farmers in the course of farming activities for any three-month period . . . . . \$ 10.00
- (2) Farmers in the course of farming activities for a period not to exceed one year. . . . . \$ 25.00
- (3) Persons engaged in the business of the sale, repair, or maintenance of such farm implements for any three-month period . . . . . \$ 25.00
- (4) Persons engaged in the business of the sale, repair, or maintenance of such farm implements for a period not to exceed one year . . . . . \$100.00

Overweight Fee Schedule

Weight over total registered gross weight plus additional gross weight purchased under provisions of RCW 46.44.095 or 46.44.047 as now or hereafter amended, or any other statute authorizing state highway commission to issue annual overweight permits.	Fee per mile on state highways
1- 5,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .05
6,000-11,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .10
12,000-17,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .15
18,000-23,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .25
24,000-29,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .35
30,000-35,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .45
36,000-41,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .60
42,000-47,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .75
48,000-53,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ .90
54,000-59,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ 1.05
60,000-65,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ 1.20
66,000-71,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ 1.45
72,000-77,999 pounds . . . . .	\$ 1.70
80,000 pounds or more. . . . .	\$ 2.00

PROVIDED: (1) the minimum fee for any overweight permit shall be \$5.00, (2) the fee for issuance of a duplicate permit shall be \$5.00, (3) when computing overweight fees which result in an amount less than even dollars the fee shall be carried to the next full dollar if fifty cents or over and shall be reduced to the next full dollar if forty-nine cents or under.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 6. Section 46.12.090, chapter 12, Laws of 1961 and RCW 46.12.090 are each hereby repealed.

Passed the House April 23, 1979.

Passed the Senate April 6, 1979.

Approved by the Governor May 2, 1979.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 2, 1979.

---

CHAPTER 114

[Substitute House Bill No. 219]

BASIC SCIENCE LAW

AN ACT Relating to basic sciences; repealing section 3, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57.085; repealing section 4, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71.075; repealing section 43.74.005, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.005; repealing section 43.74.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 22, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.010; repealing section 43.74.015, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 6, chapter 188, Laws of 1967, section 123, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.74.015; repealing section 43.74.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.020; repealing section 43.74.025, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.025; repealing section 43.74.035, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.035; repealing section 2, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 23, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.037; repealing section 43.74.040, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 24, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.040; repealing section 43.74.050, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.050; repealing section 43.74.060, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.060; repealing section 43.74.065, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.065; repealing section 43.74.075, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.075; repealing section 43.74.080, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 25, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.080; repealing section 1, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 26, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.085; repealing section 43.74.090, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.090; and repealing section 43.74.900, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.900.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

NEW SECTION. Section 1. The following acts or parts of acts are each repealed:

- (1) Section 3, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57.085;
- (2) Section 4, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71.075;
- (3) Section 43.74.005, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.005;
- (4) Section 43.74.010, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 22, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 43.74.010;
- (5) Section 43.74.015, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 6, chapter 188, Laws of 1967, section 123, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.74.015;
- (6) Section 43.74.020, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.74.020;